AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date:

Wednesday, 20th March, 2019

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Guildhall

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Information for Members of the Public
Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street. The nearest car park is
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility,
access to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt
as you face the Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is
dedicated disabled parking space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings
are held on the ground floor, which can be reached by using a lift. If you are a wheelchair
user or have restricted mobility and you wish to attend a meeting, please telephone or email
the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make any necessary arrangements to
assist your visit.
Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public. You have the right to inspect
copies of Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents
used in the preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot
of each report. Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information'
for which it is anticipated that the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither
reports nor background papers are open to public inspection.
Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to
report on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio
recording and providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used
to report on the proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings.
Accordingly, the attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and
broadcast. By choosing to attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your
consent to being filmed or recorded and for any footage to be broadcast or published.
Please note the Council audio records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings
are published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect
will be posted in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting
of the City Council he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and
audio being published live to the Council’s website. The Chairman of the meeting, can at their
discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would
prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider that continued recording might
infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision.
At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is
allowed for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any
matter on the Agenda. Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30
p.m. on the last working day before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing
the officer mentioned below.
If you have any queries about this Agenda or require any details of background papers, or to
discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, film, video or sound recording please
contact Ellen Meachen, Democratic and Electoral Services Assistant, Guildhall,
Worcester WR1 2EY.
Telephone: 01905 722006 (direct line); E-Mail Address:
committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk
This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of
ethnic minority languages. Please contact the above named officer for further information.
Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also
available electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website
Address: worcester.gov.uk

2

Audit and Governance Committee
Wednesday, 20 March 2019
Members of the Committee:Chairman: Councillor Alan Amos (C)
Vice-Chairman: Councillor George Squires (L)
Councillor Patricia Agar (LCo)
Councillor Allah Ditta (C)
Councillor Stephen Hodgson (C)
C = Conservative

Councillor Neil Laurenson (G)
Councillor Andrew Roberts (C)
Councillor Richard Udall (LCo)

G = Green

L = Labour

LCo = Labour and Co-Operative

AGENDA
Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)
1.

APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTES

To receive details of any Member
nominated to attend the meeting in place of
a Member of the Committee.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest.

3.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be
allowed, each speaker being allocated a
maximum of five minutes, for members of
the public to present a petition, ask a
question or comment on any item on the
Agenda or within the remit of the
Committee.

4.

MINUTES
Page(s) 1 - 2

Of the meeting held on 19th December 2018
to be approved and signed.

5.

2018/19 INTERNAL AUDIT
PROGRESS REPORT TO 28TH
FEBRUARY 2019
Page(s) 3 - 20
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact
Andy Bromage, Head
Officer
of Internal Audit
Shared Service
Tel: 01905 722051

That the Committee note the report.

3

6.

DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
FOR 2019-20
Page(s) 21 - 28
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact
Andy Bromage, Head
Officer
of Internal Audit
Shared Service
Tel: 01905 722051

That the Committee approves the draft
Annual Internal Audit Plan and Key
Performance Indicators.

7.

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19
Page(s) 29 - 64
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact
Mark Baldwin, Head of
Officer
Finance
Tel: 01905 722007

That the Committee endorses the external
auditor’s Audit Plan for 2018/19.

8.

DECOMMISSIONING OF
SANSOME WALK
Page(s) 65 - 76
Ward(s): Arboretum
Contact
Sian Stroud, Deputy
Officer
Director - Governance
Tel: 01905 722017

That the Committee:

LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE AND ACTION PLAN
Page(s) 77 - 82
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact
Sian Stroud, Deputy
Officer
Director - Governance
Tel: 01905 722017

That the Committee:

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of
sufficient
urgency
as
to
warrant
consideration.

9.

10.

1. notes the summary of decisions and
advice to date given in relation to the
decommissioning of the Sansome Walk
former swimming pool site; and
2. requests that the Council’s internal
audit service undertakes a Lessons
Learned review of this project, to take
account of the information set out in
this report as well as the specialist
advice currently being commissioned
for the Council on demolition options
and costs.

1. notes the update on progress to review
the
Local
Code
of
Corporate
Governance; and
2. endorses the proposals to introduce a
Corporate Governance Action Plan, with
a proposed Plan for year 2019/2020 to
be brought to the next meeting of the
Committee for approval.

4

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
19th December 2018
Present:

Councillor Alan Amos in the Chair
Councillors
Agar,
Ditta,
S. Hodgson,
Laurenson, Roberts, G. Squires (ViceChairman) and Udall

54

Officers:

David Blake – Managing Director
Andy Bromage - Head of Internal
Audit Shared Service

Apologies:

Shane Flynn – Corporate Director,
Finance and Resources
Mark Baldwin - Head of Finance

Declarations of Interest
None.

55

Public Participation
None.

56

Minutes
As raised in previous meetings, The Head of Internal Audit Shared Services on
behalf of the Head of Finance updated the Committee regarding the Mary Portas
money awarded to St Johns Traders. The money is available to be spent, however
the original brief and terms and conditions need to be examined. The Traders
Association in St Johns is no longer operational so wider stakeholder engagement
needs to be undertaken. The Managing Director suggested a meeting in January
2019 with Ward Councillors to discover what is feasible.
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 19th September 2018
be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

57

2018/19 Internal Audit Progress Report To 30th November 2018
The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service presented his report on the progress of
Internal Audit. Reviewing the Tourism Strategy he noted that some areas of the
system were working well, but found other areas where controls could be
strengthened. This included the Tourist Information Centre, but was more about
what information is available and what can be used. This service has recently
come back under City Council control and there is a need to drill down further.
He went on to highlight the main points in the report, explaining that under the
Audit Report Follow Up Programme, Audit Report regarding Debtors made 1 high
and 1 medium priority recommendations. This has now been escalated to the
Head of Finance who has confirmed that a policy review will take place. There was
no financial risk to the Council as provision had already been made.

Page 2
19th December 2018

2

Officers responded to questions on aspects of the report including Audit Days
available and the presentation of the report with further detail needed on the
forecast number of days and the actual days.
RESOLVED: That the Committee note the contents of the Report.
58

Draft Internal Audit Plan for 2019-20
The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service presented his report on the Draft
Annual Internal Audit Plan and Key Performance Indicators. He explained that the
Draft Plan had been discussed with service managers and Corporate Leadership
Team. Areas that were considered to be emerging risks or areas of mitigated risk
but require a watching brief have been highlighted for transparency purposes but
will not be included in the Plan for next year. There is a distinct possibility that
they will be included in the 2020/21 Audit Plan.
Due to the continuing changing environment that exists in Local Government the
Plan must be seen as a framework for Internal Audit work for the forthcoming
year. There is a need for flexibility in the Plan due to a changing risk profile as
well as emerging risks. To ensure flexibility there is the possibility that the Plan
will be updated during the year in order to address such challenges.
The Head of Internal Audit went on to answer Members’ questions regarding the
total number of Audit days available and clarify and correct a couple of figures
shown in the report. The total number of Audit days available was 320 days.
In the ensuing discussion the Head of Internal Audit Shared Service was able to
reassure Members that as the Plan stands, enough resources are available. If
anything came forward, the whole Plan would be reviewed in its entirety. He went
on to say that depending on the projects we have happening, there is a sound
framework regarding project management which is monitored and reported to the
relevant Committee. In relation to emerging risks improvements have been made
and we are able to react accordingly.
RESOLVED: That the Committee note the Draft Internal Audit Plan and
Key Performance Indicators.

59

Any Other Business
The Chairman informed Members that Helen Richards, Democratic Services
Administrator, was leaving the Council at the end of this week. He thanked her for
her work in the past year and wished her success in the future.

Duration of the meeting: 7 p.m. – 7.50 p.m.

Chairman at the meeting on
20th March 2019

Page 3

Agenda Item 5

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 20th March 2019
Report of: Head of Internal Audit Shared Service, Worcestershire Internal Audit
Shared Service

Subject:

2018/19 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT TO 28th FEBRUARY 2019

1.

Recommendation

1.1

That the Committee note the report.

2.

Background

2.1

To provide an update on Internal Audit’s progress towards meeting its objectives as
set out in the audit plan for 2018/2019 as approved by the Audit Committee on 21st
March 2018.

2.2

The Council is required under Regulation 5 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015 to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk
management, control and governance processes taking into account public sector
internal auditing standards or guidance”.

3.
3.1

Summary of Activity:
Progress in regard to 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan.

3.2

Progress continues to be made in regard to the 2018/19 plan with the following
audits on-going as at the 28th February 2019 and progressing through the final
stages of clearance or draft report:
 Council Tax
 NNDR
 Treasury Management
 Debtors
 Creditors

3.3

Fieldwork continues in regards to
 ICT
 Benefits
 Main Ledger
 Payroll
 Cemeteries and Crematorium
 Street Scene

3.4

Confirmation of the level of assurance and summary details of the outturns in each
case will be provided for committee perusal when they have been finalised.

Page 4

3.5

Reports completed since the 19th December 2018 in regard to the 2018-19
Internal Audit Plan.

3.6

Audit reports completed since the previous progress report meeting of 19th
December 2018 include:

3.7
3.8

GDPR
The purpose of the review was to follow up on from the last audit conducted and
ensure that the awareness of GDPR has flowed corporately and that the council is
complying. It was also to check that the recommendations in the last audit have
been considered and carried out. From the follow up audit it was identified that there
are areas which will require more time and resource to implement.

3.9

The Council’s Policy and Strategy Team are fully aware of the requirements of the
GDPR and are working with service areas towards completing the remaining items on
the action plan. There have been several recommendations made, further to the last
audit, to assist with enhancing the existing action.

3.10 There were 1 ‘high’, 3 ‘medium’ and 1 ‘low’ priority recommendations reported. The
‘high’ recommendation has been addressed, all three ‘medium’ recommendations are
in progress in line with the agreed action plan, and the ‘low’ recommendation has
been completed.
3.11 Further follow up will take place in the near future in regard to the management
action plans.
Type of Audit: Hybrid Follow Up
Report issued: 14th January 2019
Assurance: N/a
3.12 H&S – Operations Training Programme
3.13 The review found the following areas of the system were working well:
 All personal files for staff at the depot are kept locked in a cabinet in an A to
Z surname order, which makes it easier to locate information.
 The Learning Lounge is a robust system and includes a lot of features which
are suitable and user friendly to hold training records.
 There is a suitable control in place for fraud investigations regarding
accidents.
3.14

The review found the following areas of the system where controls could be
strengthened:
 Record Keeping
 Corporate Inductions
 Active Monitoring
 First Aiders
 The Learning Lounge

3.15 There were 2 ‘high’, 2 ‘medium’ and 1 ‘low’ priority recommendations reported.
Type of Audit: Full System
Report issued: 20th December 2018

Page 5

Assurance: Limited
3.16 Health and Safety Consultancy – BS18001 compliance
3.17 The work was undertaken at the request of the Health and Safety Team after
receiving a non-conformance notice as part of an external audit against the OHSAS
18001:2007 standards. The non-conformance was due to Worcester City Councils
inability to evidence that regular and targeted audits had been completed to ensure
compliance with the standards. As part of the external audit 28 days was given to
provide a response that evidenced compliance and ensured Worcester City Council
maintained the standard. The consultancy work formed part of the evidence supplied
to the external auditor to evidence independent review.
3.18 A gap analysis was provided instead of recommendations to assist the Health and
Safety Team with working towards corporate compliance and certification.
3.19 The result of the combined work of Health and Safety and the consultancy was that
Worcester City Council was able to show compliance with the Standards and retain
the full OHSAS 18001:2007 certificated standard.
Type of Review: Consultancy
Report issued: 17th December 2018
Assurance: N/a
3.20 A summary table is provided below of the finalised audits:
2018/19
GDPR
Health & Safety – Operations Training Programme
Health & Safety Certification Consultancy

N/a
Limited
N/a

3.21 A rolling testing programme on Debtors and Creditors has been undertaken during
quarter 2 and continued through quarter 3. Testing results so far do not indicate
any new or emerging risks to be brought to the attention of Committee. The rolling
testing programme results have been amalgamated and will be reported at the next
Committee.
3.22 After a recent management investigation in the Trade Waste service it was found
there had been immaterial financial loss and appropriate action has been taken to
conclude the matter.
4.

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

4.1

The 2018/19 NFI upload of data took place during October 2018. Various data sets
were required, for example, Payroll, Creditors, along with a host of others provided
by Worcestershire Regulatory Services and Civica. WIASS can confirm that all the
required data sets have been uploaded for Worcester City Council. A further data
upload took place during December in regards to the single person discount and

Page 6

electoral registration. WIASS continues to play a supporting role for all the Partners
in regard to this exercise.
5.

Follow-Up Audits

5.1

Where appropriate follow-up audit work has been undertaken e.g. Debtors, the
results of which are compiled on an on-going basis and provided in summary form
for information at Appendix 4. Any material exceptions arising from audit ‘follow up’
are reported to Audit Committee. Good progress, in the main, has been made in
satisfying a number of the ‘older’ recommendations which are now seen to be
satisfactorily implemented. In a minority of cases, where a further review is
scheduled to take place in the area, any outstanding recommendations will be
revisited as part of the review. During December it was reported that there was an
exception to report in regard to Debtors 2017/18 concerning housing sundry debtor
accounts. Since then a Finance Officer has met with Housing and agreed the process
that they should be working to and confirmed with Malvern Hills District Council that
they support it. All parties have agreed to have a combined monthly review to
confirm that procedures are indeed being followed.

6.

Risk Management

6.1

Embedding the revised risk process continues and Committee will be appraised of
the key risk areas on a regular basis. The Pentana system continues to be
developed and is used to capture and report on risk. Regular reporting has been
established in regards to risk information with updates being brought before this
Committee.

7.

Appendices

7.1

Appendix 1 shows the progress that has been made since 1st April 2018 to the 28th
February 2019 towards delivering the Internal Audit Plan set for the year. As at 28th
February 2019 a total of 297 days had been delivered against a target of 327 days
for 2018/19.

7.2

Appendix 2 shows the performance indicators for the service.
were agreed by Audit Committee on the 21st March 2018.

7.3

Appendix 3 shows the ‘high’ and ‘medium’ priority recommendations which have
been reported.

7.4

Appendix 4 provides the Committee with audit report ‘Follow Up’ actions that have
been undertaken to monitor audit recommendation implementation progress by
management.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Telephone:
Email:
Background Papers:

N/A
Andy Bromage.
01905 722051
andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk
None

These indicators

Page 7

APPENDIX 1
Delivery against Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19
as at 28th February 2019

Original
2018/19 Plan Days

Audit Area
Core Financial Systems
(See note 1)

Forecasted days to
the 31/03/19

AUDIT DAYS USED
TO 28/02/19

98

98

92

6

6

5

150

150

148

254

254

245

30

30

21

25

25

21

18

18

10

0

0

0

73

73

52

327

327

297

Corporate Audits
Other Systems Audits
(See note 2)

Sub Total

Audit Management Meetings
Corporate Meetings /
Reading
Annual Plans, Reports and
Audit Committee support
Other chargeable
Sub Total

Total

(See note 3)

Audit days used are rounded to the nearest whole.
Note 1:
This figure includes Quality Assurance monitoring work and the Revenues and Benefits Shared
Service audit work undertaken. ‘Core Financial Systems’ are predominantly audited in quarters 3 and 4 in order
to maximise the assurance provided for the Annual Governance Statement and Statement of Accounts. A rolling
programme of testing has been introduced in 2018/19 the results of which will be reported in Q4.
Note 2:
A number of the budgets in this section are ‘on demand’ (e.g. consultancy, investigations) so the
requirements can fluctuate throughout the quarters. Over the last two quarters there has been a significant
demand in regard to investigatory days for stage 2 complaints and other work. As a result there is an
expectation that the original budget may be exceeded.
Note 3:
IT issues which have led to interruptions in delivery and required resource to rectify are reflected
in this figure.

Page 8

Comparison of Audit Days by Category
150
150
148

Other Systems Audits (See note 2)

Audit Plan Days 18/19

6
6
5

Corporate Audits

Forecasted Days to 31/03/19
Audit Days Used to 28/02/19
98
98
92

Core Financial Systems(See note 1)

0 20406080100
120
140
160

AUDIT DAY COUNT

328

Comparison of Audit Day Delivery

326
324
322
320

327

Audit Plan Days 18/19
Forecasted Delivery to
31/03/19
Actual Days Delivered to
28/02/19

327

318
316

318

314
Comparison of Days
Total Budget-v-Forecasted-v-Actual

Comparison of Non Audit Days by Category
CATEGORY

Other chargeable

0
0
0

Annual Plans and Reports and
Audit Cttee Support

10

18
18

Corporate Meetings / Reading

21

Audit Management Meetings
NUMBER OF DAYS
0
10

25
25
30
30

21
20

Audit Plan Days 18/19
Forecasted Days to 31/03/19
Audit Days Used to 28/02/19

30

Page 9

APPENDIX 2
Performance against Key Performance Indicators 2018-2019
The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured against some of the following
key performance indicators for 2018/19. Other key performance indicators link to overall governance
requirements of Worcester City Council e.g. KPI 4 to 6. The 2018/19 position will be populated on a cumulative
basis throughout the year.

WIASS operates within, and conforms to, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (as amended).

KPI

1

2
3

4
5
6

7

No.
of
achieved
the year

Trend/Target
requirement

audits
during

Percentage
Plan delivered
Service
productivity

of

2018/19
Position (as
at 28th
February
2019)
Operational
Per target
Target = 12
(minimum)

Delivered = 5
5 @ draft
6 in progress
91%

>90% of agreed
annual plan
Positive
68%*
direction year on
year (Annual
target 74%)
Monitoring & Governance
No.
of
‘high’
Downward
4
priority
(minimal)
recommendations
No. of ‘moderate’
Downward
2
or
below
(minimal)
assurances
‘Follow
Up’
Management
0
results
action plan
implementation
date exceeded
(nil)
Customer Satisfaction
No. of customers
Upward
1 returned as
who assess the
‘Good’
(increasing)
service
as
‘excellent’

Frequency of
Reporting

When Audit
Committee convene

When Audit
Committee convene
When Audit
Committee convene

When Audit
Committee convene
When Audit
Committee convene
When Audit
Committee convene

When Audit
Committee convene

* Below target figure due to 4 new starters in April 2018. Training and mentoring has continued resulting in a positive trend in
the productivity figure rising from 58% at the end of Q2 to 68% at the end of Q3.

APPENDIX 3
‘HIGH’ AND ‘MEDIUM’ PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS 2018/19
Ref.

Priority

Finding

Risk

Recommendation

Management Response and
Action Plan

Audit: GDPR
Overview: Hybrid Follow Up
Assurance: N/a
1
High
Privacy Impact Assessments
Evidence
has
found
that
the
introduction to the Privacy Impact
Assessment form(s) is overdue.

Medium

The risk here is that
if Privacy Impact
Assessments are not
undertaken
during
the initial scoping
stage of projects,
procurements,
service
delivery
redesigns/changes it
could lead to the
organisation
embedding
noncompliant
systems
and
working
practises leading to
increased
financial
costs
and
reputational
damage.

It is recommended that the
deadline is reconsidered for
the
completion
of
the
Privacy Impact Assessment
forms and a procedure
agreed to introduce Privacy
Impact Assessments as a
mandatory
requirement
during the initial scoping
stage
of
any
project,
procurement
or
service
delivery redesign.

Consent

Implementation date:
31st January 2019
A requirement to consider data
protection impacts will be added to
the project approval documentation

Responsible Manager:
Communications Team Manager

Photographs
From the testing it was evidenced
that compliant photo consent forms

There
is
a
risk
associated with the

It is accepted that
pragmatic
approach

a
is

Implementation date:
31st March 2019
The communications service

will

Page 10

2

Responsible Manager:
Team Manager – Corporate Projects
and Transformation.

Ref.

Medium

Finding

Risk

Recommendation

are being used when taking new
photos. However, historical photos
lacking
the
enhanced
consent
requirements under GDPR are still
being used depending on service
needs and that these photos are not
being chased for consent if used.

use
of
old
photographs
that
are used without
consent
for
marketing purposes
potentially
leading
to,
financial
implications
if
leaflets, posters or
other methods of
promoting needed to
be re-drafted as well
as
reputational
damage through the
media
and
in
general
if
a
complaint is lodged
with the Information
Commissioning
Office.

required
in
order
to
transition
the
current
arrangements
for
stock
images
in
regard
to
marketing,
events
and
communications.
Existing
photos to be phased out and
replaced with appropriate
compliant consented images
over time. Old photos to be
deleted immediately and
transition to fully compliant
and
consented
images
within 6 months.
All new photos must require
the appropriate consent to
prevent
any
potential
financial
implications
or
reputational damage.

GDPR training
From the testing of the training log
that was provided by People Services,
it was identified that across the
organisation not all staff completed
the GDPR training and there was a
little confusion as to who had already
undergone GDPR training via other
means.

There is a risk of
reputational damage
to the organisation
as a whole if the
mandatory training
is not completed by
staff
potentially
leading to breaches
in the GDPR.

Management Response and
Action Plan
review it’s library of stock images
and ensure that a plan is in place to
phase out by March 2020 relevant
images that are not covered by
consent

Page 11

3

Priority

It is recommended that a
clear protocol is established
to ensure in future that
mandatory training is taken
by all staff regardless of the
provider and recorded.

Responsible Manager:
Head of Service, Human Resources &
OD
Implementation date:
31st March 2019
A record of training will form part of
the Council’s training plan for all staff
and be monitored regularly by people
services. Regular reviews will be
undertaken and recorded.

Ref.

Priority

Finding

4

Medium

Information Audit
Delayed
and
outstanding
Information Audit Registers
From
evidence
found,
not
all
information audit Registers were
complete and signed off by the
appropriate Head of Service or
Deputy Director at the time of audit.

Recommendation

There is a risk to the
Council of achieving
compliance with The
GDPR
if
the
information
audit
registers are not
completed
as
information
could
remain unidentified
and retained longer
that the business
need and legal basis
for
holding
potentially leading to
damage
to
the
reputation of the
organisation,
financial implications
and
ultimately
resulting
in
the
Council being noncompliant with The
GDPR

It is recommended
copies of registers
obtained.

Management Response and
Action Plan
Responsible Manager:
Deputy Director Commissioning and
Delivery
that
are

All registers are currently up to date
with the exception of the newly
transferred museums service which is
under consideration. Updating of the
registers is an ongoing process with
responsibility
resting
with
the
individual service areas. Therefore, it
is not considered to be an ongoing
risk as identified at the time of the
audit work.

Audit: Health and Safety
Overview: Full System Audit
Assurance: Limited
1
High
Record Keeping
When testing the current training
records the following findings were
found: -

Insufficient training
records leading to a
risk of having poor
control over keeping
training information

Implementation date:

a) It is recommended to use
the learning lounge for all
primary records to allow
monitoring per person(s).

Responsible Manager:
Head of Operation Services
Environmental Operations
Manager
Implementation date:
By April 2019

Projects

Page 12

This delay has impacted all aspects of
the GDPR project and in the Council
achieving compliance within the
required timescales.

Risk

Ref.

Priority

Risk

Recommendation

1.)
Leavers
There are names of staff that have
left the organisation still on file at the
depot and not being passed on to
people
services
for
appropriate
recording.

up-to-date
and
relevant. There is
also risk that the
information is noncompliant
and
potential breach of
legislation.

b) It is recommended to
consider that training and
personnel
record
requirements
are
established
for
future
reference
between
Operations
and
People
Services
and
a
timely
update
of
training
requirements is undertaken
to ensure the workforce is
fully
compliant
with
legislative requirements and
competent to use machinery
thus
ensuring
all
H&S
requirements are complied
with and documented.

2.) Record keeping - Training log
sample
testing
–
After conducting testing on a sample
size of 35 staff training records, it
was identified that an individual had
no manual training records in the
training filing cabinet. 11 out of the
35 manual staff records tested at
random were leavers and it was also
difficult to identify when staff and
agency staff had last received
training and when they are next due
to receive training. It was not easy
to identify whether some documents
had expired and staff are noncompliant.
Training
records
e.g.
corporate
inductions and certification are not
sufficient to accurately indicate the
current position of all staff training
should competency be challenged or
to ensure that retraining is occurring.

Risk of knowledge
gap due to poor
communication
between
HR
and
management at the
depot
potentially
leading to personnel
operating
machinery,
etc.
without the current
certificates
and
relevant training.

c) It is recommended to
establish a control to ensure
that when employees leave
the organisation that all
information is given to
People Services to store
rather than having the
personal
information
of
leavers being stored at the
depot.
d)If it is decided that
documents are to be kept
through a hard copy then an
additional recommendation
is to consider having a
monthly FTE (Full Time
Equivalent)
report
sent

Management Response and
Action Plan
a) H&S records- People Services
Team Leader is lead manager for
establishing the Learning Lounge as
a means of centralised record
keeping of all training.
b) Will be building the Learning
Lounge to ensure that all training
records including induction, ongoing
training and refresher training are
recorded and provide automatic
reminders when needed. Records
will be assigned to each job role and
will be established for agency
workers as well as permanent staff.
Environmental Operational Services
(EOS) will agree job categories and
packs and handbooks to be created
for each role.
Learning Lounge to be up and
running by the end of March. Packs
to be created by the end of March.
Training of employees on risk
assessments and safe operating
procedures
will
continue
using
manual documents until Learning
Lounge is updated to accept these
records.
c) All records will be checked and
leavers’ records will be passed to
People Services. By end of financial
year we will have cleansed all

Page 13

Finding

Ref.

Priority

Finding

Risk

Recommendation
between people Services
and the depot to confirm
leavers, new starters and
any changes to skills learnt
to enhance communication
levels.

2

High

Corporate Inductions

Although there are slides available on
the learning lounge, staff at the
depot that do not have access
through a computer will miss this
particular method of training which
causes a barrier to their individual
learning plans.

are

d) There will be no hard copy
records kept at the depot from April
2019 except for training on risk
assessments and safe operating
procedures as described in b).
Responsible Manager:
Head of Operation Services

Staff that do not
receive relevant and
timely
training
potentially leading to
a
breach
of
legalisation, risk of
injury or even death
in service.

a) Mandatory training for
each
post
has
been
identified and an induction
programme
should
form
part of this process.
b) It is also recommended
to start to introduce, for
new starters who work at
six ways depot, access to a
computer on a particular
date
to
complete
a
mandatory
corporate
induction online. Part of this
recommendation is to also
include agency staff to
ensure that the site is fully
compliant.

Implementation date:
By April 2019
a) A face to face induction process
is in place for all new employees,
this is undertaken by the line
manager (usually the supervisor)
and there is an induction form
used for this purpose. As above we
will be building comprehensive sets
of H&S documentation by post
along with service handbooks for
all members of staff.
b) There are computers available
at the depot for staff to undertake
mandatory H&S training. We are
about to pilot an i-pad at the depot
to see if this makes it more
accessible.
Induction process will be reviewed
and updated and in place from April
2019.

Page 14

It was identified that since May 2018
there has been no corporate health
and safety inductions carried out at
both the six ways depot and the
Guildhall creating a risk of employees
not following the correct protocol and
some information that is meant to be
passed
on
from
a
corporate
perspective being missed.

Management Response and
Action Plan
records to ensure leavers
removed.

Ref.

Priority

Finding

3

Medium

Active Monitoring
From the assessment carried out,
There is little proactive action being
undertaken to assist with the
identification of potential trends and
subsequent training being deployed
that would reduce the risk of
reoccurrence.

Medium

There is a risk that
accidents
are
repeating as there is
no active monitoring
occurring that can
be
evidenced
potentially leading to
a
breach
of
legalisation, risk of
injury or even death
in service.

Recommendation

a) Using the data held it is
recommended
to
start
proactively looking at trends
to see what areas of the
depot
accidents
are
occurring. Training plans for
refresher training sessions
for areas that seem more
vulnerable to be formulated
and deployed on a priority
basis to reduce accident
levels.

First Aiders
Following the research carried out it
was identified that the first aiders
document which is available to staff
at the depot is not including an expiry
date for staff, which means there is a
risk that the first aiders being shown
may have a first aid course certificate
which may have expired.
Although there is a control in place
regarding the training process and
who fits in the yearly plan to
undertake a first aid course, there is
no date mentioned on the first aid
sheet that the staff view, to state
how recent the document is, although
there is version control.

There is a risk that
the
first
aiders’
qualifications
have
expired
meaning
that they are not
compliant to carry
out first aid on staff
potentially leading to
a
breach
of
legislation.

a) It is recommended that
that there is clear indication
on the document to show it
is
current
version
e.g.
review date, version control,
expiry date.
b) It is also recommended
that First Aiders and Fire
Wardens
are
clearly
identified throughout the
site should there be an
emergency situation and
that their training is updated
in a timely manner.

Management Response and
Action Plan
Responsible Manager: Head
Operation Services

of

Implementation date:
January 2019
a) Proactive accident and near
miss monitoring will be regularly
undertaken through a monthly
report to the EOS management
team from January 2019. This will
assist in identifying training needs,
review of risk assessments, safe
operating procedures etc.
Responsible Manager:
Environmental Operations
Manager

Projects

Implementation date:
Before end of December 2018
a) The document is already version
controlled via the H & S Document
Management database. Date will
be added to notice displayed in
buildings.
NB First Aid and Fire Warden
training will captured through the
LL from April 2019.
b) Both first aiders and fire
wardens are already identified on
the
notices
displayed
on
information boards. There is an

Page 15

4

Risk

Ref.

Priority

Finding

Risk

Recommendation

Fire Wardens/ Trainers
Although
there
is
information
regarding the procedures in place in
case of a fire, there is no information
around for staff or visitors to know
who the Fire Wardens on site are.

In
case
of
an
emergency and a
fire there is a risk
that staff do not
know who the fire
wardens are or who
to report to.

Management Response and
Action Plan
evacuation procedure which the
trained fire wardens follow and are
responsible
in
checking
the
building in an emergency. Training
will be refreshed through the
Learning Lounge as above.

end

Page 16

APPENDIX 4
Audit Report Follow Up Programme.

Audit

Year

Date Final
Audit
Report
Issued

Assurance
Service Area

Number
of
High,
Medium
and
Low
priority
Recommendations
1st
High and Medium
Priorities
6mths
after final report
issued as long as
implementation
date has passed

2018/19
Tourism Strategy

2017/
18

28th
2018

June

2018/
19

7th October
2018

Finance

Moderate

The audit report made
1 high and 1 medium
priority
recommendations
in
relation to establishing
protocol
and
authorisation
signatories.

Follow up on the
31st October found
that
both
recommendations
were ongoing and
had
not
been
satisfied. This has
been escalated to
the
Head
of
Finance.

Economic
Development

Moderate

The audit report made
1 high and 2 medium
priority
recommendations
in
relation
to
budget
monitoring, action plan
review
and
tourism
marketing.

High
priority
recommendation
has been satisfied
in regard to budget
monitoring.
Follow
up
planned
for
September 2019
to coincide with
the completion of

Although
reported as an
exception,
with
the intervention
this audit has
now
been
satisfied.
No
further
follow
up required.

3rd

Page 17

2017/18
Debtors

FOLLOW UP
2nd
High and Medium
Priorities
still
outstanding
3mths
after
previous
follow
up as long as
implementation
date has passed

Audit

H&S Operations

Year

2018/
19

Date Final
Audit
Report
Issued

20th
December
2018

Assurance
Service Area

Cleaner
Greener

Limited

Number
of
High,
Medium
and
Low
priority
Recommendations

end

FOLLOW UP
2nd

3rd

Page 18

The audit reported 2
‘high’, 2 ‘medium’ and
1 ‘low’ priority
recommendations.
Recommendations
included; to review how
training documents are
kept, to consider going
electronic through the
learning lounge, to
introduce mandatory
training for each post,
to update all first aider
records so the site is
compliant and to proactively look for near
misses to help
understand how to
improve.

1st
the implementation
plan.
Follow up to be
undertaken
in
April 2019.

Conclusion:
IA considers, overall, progress is being made by the respective managers and services with regard to the
implementation of their action plans against reported Internal Audit recommendations. Although there are a
couple of audits whereby work continues it is considered that there are legitimate reasons why this is the
case (for example continuing development, or proposed system changes) or, non material risk items. Core
financial audits are followed up as part of the annual audits.

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Agenda Item 6

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 20th March 2019
Report of: Head of Internal Audit Shared Service, Worcestershire Internal Audit
Shared Service

Subject:

DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN FOR 2019-20

1.

Recommendation

1.1

That the Committee approves the Draft Annual Internal Audit Plan and Key
Performance Indicators.

2.

Background

2.1

To present the Worcester City Council Draft Internal Audit Operational Plan (see
Appendix 1) and the Internal Audit Shared Services set of key performance indicators
for 2019/20 (see Appendix 2) for approval.

2.2

The Council is required under Regulation 5 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector
internal auditing standards or guidance”.

2.3

To aid compliance with the regulation, the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (as amended) details that “Internal auditing is an independent,
objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an
organisation's operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing
a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control, and governance processes”.

3.

Audit Objectives

3.1

The objectives of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service are to:
 examine, evaluate and report on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control
and risk management across the Council and recommend arrangements to address
weaknesses as appropriate;


examine, evaluate and report on arrangements to ensure compliance with
legislation and the Council’s objectives, policies and procedures;



examine, evaluate and report on procedures to check that the Council’s assets and
interests are adequately protected and effectively managed;



undertake independent investigations into allegations of fraud and irregularity in

Page 22

accordance with Council policies and procedures and relevant legislation; and


3.2

advise upon the control and risk implications of new systems or other
organisational changes.

Formulation of Annual Plan
WIASS operates an Internal Audit Charter which sets out the standards to which it
operates for this Council. The draft Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20, which is included at
Appendix 1, is a risk based plan which takes into account the adequacy of the Council’s
risk management, performance management, challenges, other assurance processes as
well as organisational objectives and priorities. It has been based upon the risk
priorities per the Corporate and Service risk registers as indicated in the Covalent
system. Large spend budget areas have also been considered, and, direct association
has been made to the City Plan. The draft Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 has been
agreed with the section 151 officer and has been considered by Heads of Service and
CLT. It has been formulated with the aim to ensure Worcester City Council meets its
strategic purposes and delivers the City Plan and has directly linked the various aspects
to identify the ‘golden thread’ in regards to the City Plan, risk identification to Service
delivery. It was first brought before the Audit and Governance Committee in draft
format in December 2018 as the involvement of the Committee is considered to be an
important facet of good corporate governance, contributing to the internal control
assurance given in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.
We recognise there are other review functions which provide other sources of
assurance, both internally and externally, (e.g. ICT Public Service Network assurance
testing) over aspects of the Council’s operations. Where possible we will seek to place
reliance on such work thus reducing the internal audit coverage as required.
To try to reduce duplication of effort we understand the importance of working with the
External Auditors. The audit plan is shared with the external auditors for information
along with some of the work that is undertaken during a review.

3.3 Resource Allocation
The Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 has been based upon a resource allocation of 320
productive audit delivery days but is showing a small reduction on 2018/19’s budget of
327. A summary of the days as well as the detailed plan provision has been included
with the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 at Appendix 1. Those areas that are considered
to have a ‘high’ priority will be targeted first where practicable in regard to the plan
delivery. A number of areas have been included in the plan and are shared with other
Partners. Budgets are split across different Partner audit plans to reduce the burden on
any one Council but allow the delivery of reviews where services are shared. An
assessment was made what to include in the plan based on the overall risk and
governance profile. A watching brief will be kept on the financial systems and a rolling
programme of testing will take place but they are not considered as the key risk areas
due to embedded process, control and anti fraud measures. Operational support days
are included to give a little flexibility and contingency in the plan e.g. consultancy.
These are necessary to support the delivery of the plan as a whole. Areas that were
considered to be emerging risks or areas of mitigated risk but require a watching brief

Page 23

have been highlighted for transparency purposes but will not be included in the plan for
next year. There is a distinct possibility that they will be included in the 2020/21 audit
plan. One area that has been requested since the draft plan was formulated is
‘Safeguarding’. It is proposed that this will be delivered using part of the contingency
budget.
Due to the continuing changing environment that exists in Local Government the plan
must be seen as a framework for Internal Audit work for the forthcoming year. There is
a need for flexibility in the plan due to a changing risk profile as well as emerging risks.
To ensure flexibility there is the possibility that the plan will be updated during the year
in order to address such challenges.
3.4 Financial implications
The estimated charge to the Council for the Internal Audit service for 2019/20 based
upon this plan will be notified to the Client Officer Group when all the client plan days
across the Shared Service have been agreed.
3.5 Monitoring and reporting of performance against the Plan
Operational progress against the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 will be closely
monitored by the Head of Service of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service
and will be reported to the Shared Service’s Client Officer Group, which comprises the
section 151 officers from client organisations’ and to the Audit and Governance
Committee on a quarterly basis. The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared
Service will be determined by the performance against a set of performance indicators
which have been developed for the service. These have been agreed with the Council’s
section 151 officer and are included at Appendix 2. Performance against these
indicators will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee at the frequency
stipulated in Appendix 2.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Telephone:
Email:
Background Papers:

N/A
Andy Bromage.
01905 722051
andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk
None

Page 24

APPENDIX 1
SUMMARY OF DETAILED DRAFT PLAN

Planned Days
Financials
Corporate Work
Other Systems Audits
Sub total

2019/20
108
21
121
250

Audit management meetings
Corporate meetings / reading
Annual plans, reports and
Audit Committee support

30
20

Sub total

70

TOTAL Audit Days

20

320

Page 25

APPENDIX 1
Draft 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan

Corporate
Link

Audit Area

Inclusion
due to
risk

Outline
resource
required
2019/20
(days)

Priority

☑

5

Low

Business as
usual

☑

4

Low

Business as
usual

☑

0

Low

Returning
Service

☑

16

Low

Business as
usual

☑

3

Low

Risk
Register
link

2018/19
Days
comparison

Financial Services
Debtors
Main Ledger/Budget
Monitoring/Bank Reconciliation
Creditors#
Payroll (contract monitoring/inhouse)**
Treasury Management

Underpins City
Plan
requirements
Underpins City
Plan
requirements
Underpins City
Plan
requirements
Underpins City
Plan
requirements
Underpins City
Plan
requirements

Business as
usual

Sub Total

28

Council Tax*
Benefits*
NNDR*
Client Side Checking

Underpins City
Plan
requirements
Underpins City
Plan
requirements
Underpins City
Plan
requirements
Underpins City
Plan
requirements

SF-SRK-002

☑

6

Low/
Medium

☑

8

Low/
Medium

☑

6

Low/
Medium

☑

60

Low/
Medium

TOTAL

108

98

Corporate
Underpins City
Plan
requirements

IT Audit*

Business as
usual

Risk Management
Underpins City
Plan
requirements

Transformation
Procurement

(new system, exemptions
& policy adherence, contracts/agreements
and rolling contracts)

Underpins City
Plan
requirements

City Plan Policies

City Plan

SUB TOTAL

(in development)

CRK-012

CRK-009

☑

Medium

10

Medium

5

Low

☒
☒

☑
Business as
usual

6

21

Page 26

Corporate
Link

Risk
Register
link

Inclusion
due to
risk

Outline
resource
required
2019/20
(days)

Priority

(much change/basic processes -critical
friend approach)

Sustaining and
Improving our
Assets

CS-SRKCremators

☑

12

High

CCTV (partnership
arrangements & monitoring)

Stronger and
Connected
Communities

CS-SRK-005
& 008

☒

Sustaining and
Improving our
Assets

OP-SRK-002

☑

15

High

OP-SRK-005

☒

OP-SRK-006

☑

9

High

Audit Area
Other Systems Audits
Community
Cemetery and Crematorium

Operations
Refuse, Recycling and Trade
Waste (analysis of data - critical friend)
(Days to be allocated to each area)

Street Scene
New system implementation
Health & Safety

(Depot 12mths on

follow up)

Sustaining and
Improving our
Assets
Underpins City
Plan
requirements

Legal
Guildhall Use/Income
Strategic Housing
Affordable Housing
Delivery/Temp Accommodation
(preliminary work only)
Asset Management
Tech-Forge interface with Civica
& processes **
Property Investment
2-4 Copenhagen Street
Sansome Walk pool site

Sustaining and
Improving our
Assets

Stronger and
Connected
Communities

Sustaining and
Improving our
Assets
Sustaining and
Improving our
Assets
Sustaining and
Improving our
Assets
Sustaining and
Improving our
Assets

☒

SH-SRK-002

☑

10

Medium

Returning
Service

☑

14

Medium

8

Medium

☒
☒
☒

Economic Development and
Planning
New System Implementation
Museums**

A Heritage
City for the
21st Century

Returning
Service

☑

2018/19
Days
comparison

Page 27

Audit Area

Corporate
Link

Tourist Information Office**

A Heritage
City for the
21st Century

Other Operational Work
Advisory, Consultancy (incl.
H&S/Safeguarding) &
Contingency
Fraud & Investigations inc NFI
Completion of prior year's
audits
Report Follow Up (all areas)
SUB TOTAL
TOTAL

N/a

Risk
Register
link
Returning
Service

N/a

Inclusion
due to
risk

☑

Outline
resource
required
2019/20
(days)

Priority

5

Medium

☑

15
12

N/a

N/a

☑

N/a

N/a

☑

N/a

N/a

☑

9
12
121
142

Audit Management Meetings
Corporate Meetings / Reading

N/a

N/a

☑

30

N/a

N/a

☑

20

Annual Plans, Reports &
Committee Support

N/a

N/a

☑

TOTAL
TOTAL CHARGEABLE

2018/19
Days
comparison

159

20

70

70

320

327

# As part of the shared service for Debtors and Creditors the audits are split between the
Malvern Hills District Council internal audit plan and the Worcester City Council internal audit
plan thus giving coverage and assurance but reducing the overall number of days.
*Shared budgets with two other Partners. Budgets are consolidated to deliver the review for
all three Partners.
**New potential risk areas days due to the Service returning to Worcester City Council.
Financial audits will be undertaken on a rolling basis using an analytical analysis to identify
any potential developing risk areas. Full reviews will be undertaken if the emerging risks
and/or trends are identified due to significant change e.g. people or systems.

Page 28

APPENDIX 2
Performance against Key Performance Indicators 2019-2020
The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured
against some of the following key performance indicators for 2019/20. Other key
performance indicators link to overall governance requirements of Worcester City
Council e.g. KPI 4, 5 and 6. The 2019/20 position will be populated on a cumulative
basis throughout the year.
KPI

1

2
3

4
5
6

7

No.
of
achieved
the year

Trend/Target
requirement

audits
during

Percentage
Plan delivered
Service
productivity

of

2019/20
Position (as
at
XXXXXXXX)
Operational
Per target
Target = 12
(minimum)

Delivered =
XX
XX

>90% of agreed
annual plan
Positive
XX
direction year on
year (Annual
target 74%)
Monitoring & Governance
No.
of
‘high’
Downward
XX
priority
(minimal)
recommendations
No. of moderate
Downward
XX
or
below
(minimal)
assurances
‘Follow
Up’
Management
XX
results
action plan
implementation
date exceeded
(nil)
Customer Satisfaction
No. of customers
Upward
XX
who assess the
(increasing)
service
as
‘excellent’

Frequency of
Reporting

When Audit
Committee convene
When Audit
Committee convene
When Audit
Committee convene

When Audit
Committee convene
When Audit
Committee convene
When Audit
Committee convene

When Audit
Committee convene

WIASS operates within, and conforms to, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (as amended).

Page 29

Agenda Item 7

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 20th March 2019
Report of: Head of Finance

Subject:

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2018/19

1.

Recommendation

1.1

That the Committee endorses the external auditor’s Audit Plan for 2018/19.

2.

Background

2.1

Ernst Young, our independent external auditors have submitted the attached Audit
Plan report (Appendix 1) which outlines their proposed approach to planning and
delivering their audit and the fees for the 2018/19 financial year.

2.2

One of the key objectives of the Audit Plan is for Ernst Young to obtain reasonable
assurance that the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement and prepared in all material respects within the CIPFA Code of Practice
framework.

3.

Information

3.1

The Audit Plan has no significant changes from last year and does not identify any
specific risks relating to the City Council. The report details the following:

3.1.1 The financial statements audit approach and the impact of any changes in national
audit requirements
3.1.2 The audit approach to delivering the Value for Money conclusion
3.1.3 The key dates for the 2018/19 audit cycle. The statutory deadline for issuing the
annual Statement of Accounts is 31st July. The City Council achieved this last year
and has robust plans in place to ensure the same for this year.
3.2

The audit fee for 2018/19 is £39,362 plus a further fee of £9,250 for certification of
the Housing Benefit subsidy. These fees are a reduction form the previous year and
are in line with the approved budget. Additional fees may be payable if further
unplanned audit work is required.

3.3

It is the Council’s policy to comply with all codes of practice and financial reporting
standards relating to the production and publication of the Statement of Accounts.
The Council’s Finance Team will work with the external auditors to ensue that the
audit delivery is successful by adhering to the proposed timescales, meeting the
audit working paper requirements and by being available during the audit process to
deal with query resolution.

Page 30

3.4

The Council’s Constitution defines the purpose of the Audit Committee (AC) and its
remit. A key part of the AC’s purpose is to provide independent assurance to our
members of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the internal
control environment. To do this, part of the AC’s role is to oversee the work of
internal audit and our independent external auditors, to ensure that efficient and
effective assurance arrangements are in place. This includes agreeing the external
auditor’s Audit Plan on an annual basis.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

All
Mark Baldwin Tel: 01905 722007, email
mark.baldwin@worcester.gov.uk
None

Worcester City Council
Audit planning report

Year ended 31 March 2019
March 2019

Page 31

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1

Private and Confidential
Members of the Audit and Governance Committee
Worcester City Council
The Guildhall
High Street
Worcester
WR1 2EY

20th March 2019

Dear Committee Members

Page 32

Audit planning report
We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the
Audit and Governance Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2018/19 audit in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.
This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our
planned audit strategy in response to those risks. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit and Governance
Committee and management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 20th March 2019 as well as understand whether there are other matters which you
consider may influence our audit.
Yours faithfully
Hassan Rohimun
Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

2

Contents
01

Overview of our
2018/19 audit
strategy

for
02 Audit risks 03 Value
Money Risks

04 Audit
materiality

of our
05 Scope
audit

V
F
M

Page 33

Appendices
06 Audit team 07 Audit
08
timeline

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/auditquality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit and Governance Committee and Management of Worcester City Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the Audit and Governance Committee and Management of Worcester City Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit and Governance Committee and Management of Worcester City Council for this report or for the opinions
we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

3

Page 34

Overview of our 2018/19 audit
01 strategy
01
4

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy
The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit and Governance
Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.
Audit risks and areas of focus
Risk / area of focus

Change from PY

Fraud Risk

No change in risk or
focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

Change in focus

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to
improper revenue recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified
by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that
auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by
the manipulation of expenditure recognition. We have assessed the risk as
manifesting principally arising in the arrangements to ensure that capital
expenditure are reasonable and correctly accounted for and therefore we will
complete work to get assurance on year end revenue and capital expenditure.

No change in risk or
focus

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to
improper revenue recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified
by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that
auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by
the manipulation of expenditure recognition.

Incorrect capitalisation of revenue
expenditure

Fraud risk

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition
Fraud risk

Details

Page 35

Risk identified

Misstatements due to fraud and
error

5

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy
The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit and Governance
Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.
Audit risks and areas of focus
Risk / area of focus
Valuation of Property, Plant &
Equipment

Risk identified

Change from PY

Inherent Risk

No change in risk or
focus

Details
The Council holds a significant amount of Property, Plant and Equipment on its
balance sheet, of which a large proportion is held at fair value which is based on
significant judgements.

Accounting for Pension Liability

N/A

New

IFRS15 in respect of Revenue becomes effective this year. There is a risk that the
Council has not considered the impact of this accounting standard on the
preparation of the accounts. Whilst our expectation is that the impact on
2018/19 accounts will not be material for most public sector bodies, clients will
need to consider the nature of its revenue and consider when revenue should be
recognised.

Page 36

Inherent Risk

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance. At 31 March
2018 the council share of the net pension liability of the fund at 31st March 2018
as estimated by the actuary was £37m. Accounting for this scheme involves
significant estimation and judgement and therefore management engages an
actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500
and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of management experts
and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

Implementation of IFRS 15

Inherent Risk

6

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy
Audit scope
This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:
§ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Worcester City Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2019 and of the
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and
§ Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts
return.
Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

§
§
§
§
§

Page 37

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:
Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
The quality of systems and processes;
Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council.

7

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy
Materiality

Planning
materiality

£1,149k

Materiality has been set at £1,149k, which represents 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on provision of services. We have
considered each expenditure line item below this and included Operating Expenditure and Pension Net Interest Cost Less Admin Expense
in calculating materially
Performance
materiality

£861k

Performance materiality has been set at £861k, which represents 75% of materiality.

Audit
differences

Page 38

£57k

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements comprehensive income
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement, and
collection fund greater than £57k. Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent
that they merit the attention of the Audit and Governance Committee.

8

Page 39

02 Audit risks

01
9

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks
We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.
What is the risk?
Misstatements due to fraud or
error

Misstatements that occur in
relation to fraud and error are
pervasive in the audit. Areas where
there is the potential for fraud or
error may occur are:
-

We will:
• Identifying fraud risks during the planning stages.
• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in
place to address those risks.
• Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance
of management’s processes over fraud.
• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed
to address the risk of fraud.
• Determining an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks
of fraud.
• Developing a testing approach to journal entries.
• Assessing accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.
• Evaluating the business rationale for any significant unusual
transactions.
• Performing appropriate tests to assess whether provisions are both
complete and fairly stated.

Estimates
Journals
Significant and/or unusual
transactions
Provisions

10

Page 40

Financial statement impact

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240,
management is in a unique position to
perpetrate fraud because of its ability to
manipulate accounting records directly or
indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.

What will we do?

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks
We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.
What is the risk?
Incorrect capitalisation of
revenue expenditure

Misstatements that occur in
relation to this risk may impact the
following significant accounts:
PPE Additions - £2.1m

The financial statements as a whole are not free
of material misstatements whether caused by
fraud or error.

We will:

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
its ability to manipulate accounting records
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.

•

This could be materialise as a result of either
capitalising expenditure on revenue items or
revenue items being incorrectly identified as
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under
statute, thus funded from capital

•

•
•

Ensure that capitalised expenditure meets the criteria for this
treatment;
Substantively test expenditure classed as Revenue Expenditure Funded
from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS), ensuring that it meets the
criteria for this treatment
Review accounting policies, identifying whether consistent with prior
year and the code of practice;
Review the utilisation of Capital Receipts in the year.

.

CIES Net Cost of Services – Other
Expenditure – £0.3m
Figures above are from the
2017/18 financial statements
Revised capital budget for
2018/19 is £4.3m

11

Page 41

Financial statement impact

What will we do?

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks
We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition

Misstatements that occur in
relation to the risk of fraud in
revenue and expenditure
recognition could affect the income
and expenditure accounts.

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to improper
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which
states that auditors should also consider the risk
that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.
The risks we have identified are most focused
around those items of income and expenditure
which are non-routine and involve more
management estimation and judgment such as
year-end income and expenditure accruals and
provisions.

What will we do?
We will:
•

Test the valuation of accruals (income and expenditure) and testing
provisions completeness and valuation at the year-end as these are the
areas most susceptible to manipulation by management to achieve the
desired expenditure levels;

•

Test the completeness of liabilities and income and expenditure cut off
to gain assurance that there has been no material amounts of
expenditure omitted from the financial statements;

•

Test the existence and valuation of debtors and accrued income; and

•

Complete Journal entry testing within specific parameters

These accounts had the following
balances in the 2017/18 financial
statements:
Income Account: £44m
Expenditure Account: £56m

12

Page 42

Financial statement impact

What is the risk?

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.
What is the risk/area of focus?

What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings
We will:
•

•
•
•
•

Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuers, including the adequacy of the
scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their
work;
Sample testing key asset information used by the valuers in performing their
valuation (e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre);
We will also consider if there are any specific changes to assets that have occurred
and that these have been communicated to the valuer;
Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation;
and
Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements

Pension Liability Valuation

We will:

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the
Council to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements
regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme
administered by Worcestershire County Council.
The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the
Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance
sheet. At 31 March 2018 this totalled £37 million.
The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the
Council by the actuary to the County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement
and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the
calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require
us to undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

•

•

•

Page 43

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) represent
significant balances in the Council’s accounts and are subject to valuation
changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is
required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation
techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance
sheet.

Liaise with the auditors of Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund, to obtain
assurances over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to Worcester City
Council;
Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary including the assumptions they have
used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by Public
Sector Auditor Appointments for all Local Government sector auditors, and
considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and
Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s
financial statements in relation to IAS19

13

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.
What is the risk/area of focus?

What will we do?

Implementation of IFRS 15
We will:
•
•
•

Review the Council’s workings supporting its analysis of the impact of IFRS 15 on the
recognition of Revenue;
Review any changes to disclosures and/or accounting policies and compare these to
the requirements of CiPFA Code of Practice;
When testing revenue transactions, consider whether the revenue has been
recognised correctly under IFRS15;

14

Page 44

IFRS15 in respect of Revenue becomes effective this year. There is a risk
that the Council has not considered the impact of this accounting
standard on the preparation of the accounts. Whilst our expectation is
that the impact on 2018/19 accounts will not be material for most public
sector bodies, clients will need to consider the nature of its revenue and
consider when revenue should be recognised.

Page 45

03 Value for Money Risks

01
V
F
M

15

Value for Money

V
F
M

Background
We are required to consider whether the council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.
For 2018/19 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:
“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”
Informed
decision making

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise
your arrangements to:
Take informed decisions;
Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.
We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of
Audit Practice defines as:
“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Page 46

§
§
§

Proper arrangements for
securing value for money

Sustainable
resource
deployment

Working with
partners and
third parties

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further
work. We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector
and organisation-specific level. In 2018/19 this has included consideration of the steps taken by the council to
consider the impact of Brexit on its future service provision, medium-term financing and investment values.
Although the precise impact cannot yet be modelled, we anticipate that Authorities will be carrying out scenario
planning and that Brexit and its impact will feature on operational risk registers.

16

Value for Money

V
F
M

Background
Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the issues we have identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to
local taxpayers, the Government and other stakeholders. As a result of our planning procedures, we have identified a specific area of focus which we view as relevant to our
value for money conclusion.
Taking informed decisions on strategic acquisitions
We will have regards to the arrangements the Council had to inform the decision making process. Including:
•
•
•

Consideration of expert advice sought and procured.
Evidence of due diligence and business cases to inform decision making.
Consideration of the alignment to the Councils strategic priorities in informing the decision making process for proposed acquisitions.

17

Page 47

At the planning stage it is our understanding that strategic acquisitions within the retail sector will not be completed by 31 March 2019. If there were acquisitions during
2018/19 we will review our financial statements audit risk assessment and communicate any changes in our assessment to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Page 48

04 Audit materiality

01
18

Audit materiality

Materiality
Materiality

Key definitions

For planning purposes, materiality for 2018/19 has been set at £1,149k. This
represents 2% of the Council’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It
will be reassessed throughout the audit process. It is set at 2% as this is a public entity
which operates in an environment where profit is not a motive. It is a mature entity
and is subject to a high level of control over how it operates (from Central
Government).

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial
statements.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet, and collection fund that
have an effect on income or that relate to other comprehensive income.

Performance
materiality

£57.4m

£861k
Planning
materiality

Audit
differences

£1,149k

£57k

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit and
Governance Committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective.
Specific materiality – We have set a materiality of £1k for remuneration
disclosures, related party transactions with officers, members’ allowances
and exit packages which reflects our understanding that an amount less
than our materiality would influence the economic decisions of users of the
financial statements in relation to this.

We request that the Audit and Governance Committee its understanding of, and
agreement to, these materiality and reporting levels.
* Note the figure for the gross expenditure on provision of services includes Operating
Expenditure and Pension Net Interest Cost Less Admin Expense

19

Page 49

Gross expenditure
on provision of services*

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at
£57.4m which represents 75% of planning materiality

Page 50

05 Scope of our audit

01
20

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy
Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping
Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.
We issue an audit report that covers:
1. Financial statement audit
Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK).

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.
Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.
2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)
We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

21

Page 51

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)
Audit Process Overview
Our audit involves:
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and
• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2018/19 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Page 52

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
improvement, to management and the Audit and Governance Committee.
Internal audit:
We will regularly meet with the Head of Internal Audit, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports,
together with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial
statements. Our audit strategy will be a substantive audit approach and therefore will not be relying on the work of internal audit.

22

Page 53

06 Audit team

01
23

Audit team

Audit team
The engagement team is led by Hassan Rohimun who has significant experience of Local Government. Hassan is supported by Natalie Ryan who is responsible for
the day-to-day direction of audit work and is the key point of contact for the Head of Finance.

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:
Specialists

Pensions disclosure

EY Actuaries

Page 54

Area

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.
We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:
•

Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

•

Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

•

Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

•

Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

24

Page 55

07 Audit timeline

01
25

Audit timeline
Timetable of communication and deliverables

Timeline
Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2018/19.
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit and Governance Committee and we will discuss them with the committee
Chair as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.
Reporting our independence, risk assessment,
planned audit approach and the scope of our audit

The Annual Audit Letter
will be provided following
completion of our audit
procedures

Audit Results Report

Annual Audit Letter

Audit Plan &
Audit Plan and Interim Audit Update

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Planning

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

Interim Audit

Planning

Risk assessment and setting of scopes

May

Jun

Jul

Substantive
testing

Interim Audit &
walkthroughs
Controls assessment and
early substantive testing
Walkthrough of key
systems and processes

Year End Audit
Work begins on our year
end audit. This is when we
will complete any
substantive testing not
completed at interim

Aug

Page 56

Reporting our interim work and any control
observations and progress of our work on
significant risks

Reporting our conclusions on
key judgements and estimates
and confirmation of our
independence

Page 57

08 Appendices

01
27

Appendix A

Fees

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published the fee scale for the audit of the 2018/19 accounts of opted-in principal local government and police bodies.
This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

Scale fee
2018/19

Final Fee
2017/18

£

£

£

Total Fee – Code work

39,362

39,362

54,268

Total audit

39,362

39,262

54,268

9,250

9,250

17,341

9,250

9,250

17,341

48,612

48,612

71,609

Housing Benefits Subsidy Claim
Total other non-audit services
Total fees

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:
► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

Page 58

Planned fee
2018/19

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being
unqualified;
► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and
► The Council has an effective control environment.

All fees exclude VAT
The final fee for housing benefits 2017/18 has not confirmed.
Additional work was required to complete the certification in line
with guidance, not covered by the scale fee. The additional fees are
subject to PSAA approval.
The planned fee for 2018/19 housing benefits does not include
the cost of additional work that may be required.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a
variation to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in
advance.
Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public
and formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

28

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit and Governance Committee
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Audit and Governance Committee.
Our Reporting to you
Required communications

What is reported?
Confirmation by the Audit and Governance Committee of acceptance of terms of
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

Our responsibilities

Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.

Significant findings from
the audit

•
•
•
•
•
•

Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures
Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
Written representations that we are seeking
Expected modifications to the audit report
Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.
The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.
Audit planning report
Audit results report

29

Page 59

Terms of engagement

When and where

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit and Governance Committee
(continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications

What is reported?

When and where

Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements

•

Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by
law or regulation
The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
Corrected misstatements that are significant
Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Enquiries of the Audit and Governance Committee to determine whether they have
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity
Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist
A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

•
•
•
•
Fraud

•
•
•

Related parties

•
•
•
•
•
•

Page 60

Going concern

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties Audit results report
including, when applicable:
Non-disclosure by management
Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
Disagreement over disclosures
Non-compliance with laws and regulations
Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity
30

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit and Governance Committee
(continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications

What is reported?

When and where

Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
Audit Planning Report and Audit Results
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Report
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity
and independence

External confirmations

•
•

Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

Consideration of laws and
regulations

•

Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation
on tipping off
Enquiry of the Audit and Governance Committee into possible instances of noncompliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial
statements and that the Audit and Governance Committee may be aware of
Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit

Audit results report

•

Internal controls

•

Representations

Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Page 61

Independence

Management letter/audit results report

31

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit and Governance Committee
(continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications

What is reported?

When and where

Auditors report

•

Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report

Audit results report

Fee Reporting

•
•
•

Breakdown of fee information when the audit plan is agreed
Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
Any non-audit work

Audit planning report
Audit results report

Certification work

Summary of certification work undertaken

Page 62

Certification report

32

Appendix C

Additional audit information
Other required procedures during the course of the audit
In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.
Our responsibilities required
by auditing standards

•

•
•

•

•

33

Page 63

•
•

Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.
Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Council to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial
statements, the Audit and Governance Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the
committee and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
Maintaining auditor independence.

Appendix C

Additional audit information (continued)
Purpose and evaluation of materiality
For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.
Materiality determines:
• The locations at which we conduct audit procedures to support the opinion given on the financial statements; and
• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

34

Page 64

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

Page 65

Agenda Item 8

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 20th March 2019
Report of: Deputy Director - Governance and Monitoring Officer

Subject:
1.

DECOMMISSIONING OF SANSOME WALK

Recommendation
That the Committee:

1.1

notes the summary of decisions and advice to date given in relation to the
decommissioning of the Sansome Walk former swimming pool site; and

1.2

requests that the Council’s internal audit service undertakes a Lessons
Learned review of this project, to take account of the information set out in
this report, as well as the specialist advice currently being commissioned for
the Council on demolition options and costs.

2.

Background

2.1

The Council has put on hold a construction contract to secure the demolition and
remediation of the Sansome Walk swimming pool site (“the Site”), pending receipt of
further specialist advice on the financial implications and options for remediation and
future development uses. The Council requires a reliable assessment of cost for
demolition on the basis that it remains the owner of the Site and is currently proceeding
on the assumption that it will need to remediate the Site itself in order to attract any
future development potential or value.

2.2

The Council’s Policy and Resources Committee will receive a report on the outcome of
this specialist advice and consider any budgetary or other implications or other matters
which may need to be referred to Council. While this process is ongoing, it is within the
remit of the Audit and Governance Committee to review the Council’s governance
arrangements and project delivery processes which have guided the position to date.

3.

Governance summary

3.1

A chronology of the Council’s decision-making in respect of the decommissioning of the
Site is attached at Appendix 1. The chronology begins in 2012 with the early decisions
to look at the potential refurbishment of the Site or the construction of a new facility
elsewhere, with Perdiswell becoming the preferred option. However, the condition of
the Site was a matter of concern to the Council prior to 2012, with reference to a
Working Party convened in 2009 to review the possible repair liability of the building,
and the pool needing to be closed for a short period due to immediate safety concerns

Page 66

and substantial costs being estimated for refurbishment and repair.
3.2

The reports show that the decision to decommission Sansome Walk was viewed as an
inevitable consequence of the decision to construct a new facility at Perdiswell, but that
the decommissioning implications were not reported as part of the overall swimming
pool project or budget. While the failing condition of the Site appeared in the reports to
add weight to the Perdiswell preferred option, the detailed options appraisal work and
the reports which follow it were principally focused on the development opportunities
afforded at the Perdiswell site. However it could be argued that any use, refurbishment
or disposal decision of the Site would have encountered the same issues which are
arising now; the use of asbestos as a building material in the Site was well understood
within the Council and common for buildings of its age.

3.3

The Cabinet made a decision to dispose of the Site in December 2016. Delegated
authority was given to the S.151 Officer in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Performance and Resources, authority to approve financing for the demolition works, to
include site security, ground condition surveys and applications for all relevant planning
and environmental consents. The financial extent of the delegation was uncapped but
this matter was brought back to subsequent meetings of the Council as the budget
position became clearer.

4.

Advice summary

4.1

There is evidence on file that the Council has obtained asbestos surveys as required by
law, when the pool was operational. Since the Site was closed the Council, through
Place Partnership Limited, has obtained demolition surveys from first, Bradley
Environmental (2017), and then SOCOTEC (2018), both specialist asbestos
consultancies. The Council undertook a tender for a demolition contractor in 2018 and
appointed Hughes & Salvidge. The procurement process was quality assured by Bailey
Garner consultancy and supported by Place Partnership Limited.

4.2

A summary of key extracts of contemporaneous advice is attached at Appendix 2.
There is further commercially sensitive information for the Audit and Governance
Committee to inspect should they wish to do so.

4.3

Separate to the asbestos survey advice, it should be noted that the decision reports
assume a capital receipt of the Site of circa £500k. This appears to be derived from
internal valuation advice (draft reports from 2016 refer) and assumed a residual value
for the Site on the basis that the Site would be transferred to a third party developer
which would undertake the remediation work. In December 2016 the report to Cabinet
instead recommended that the Council retain the Site for the purpose of completing the
demolition work itself. This has led to the requirement for specialist advice and
costings, and a suitably competent lead contractor and subcontractors.

5.

Next steps

5.1

As noted in section 2.2, the Council is currently commissioning detailed specialist advice
from Gleeds consultancy which will inform next steps on the future of the Site.

Page 67

5.2

In view of the fact that the Council is expecting to deliver a number of significant capital
projects in the next period, the Audit and Governance Committee may wish to consider
whether this project identifies any lessons learned which the Council’s internal audit
service should review and report on. Possible lines of enquiry for internal audit to
consider would be:






identifying the scope of a project to include the implications of decommissioning;
identifying the project budget position and mechanisms for keeping it under review;
risk management, use of project risk registers, and the reporting of risks to decision
making bodies;
the process and terms of appointment of specialist advisers and suppliers;
best practice procurement for construction services generally.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Telephone:
Email:
Background Papers:

Arboretum
Sian Stroud
01905 722019
sian.stroud@worcester.gov.uk
None

Page 68

APPENDIX 1
Sansome Walk decisions chronology
20 June 2012
Cabinet
That the Cabinet approve:
1.

The preferred swimming pool development model (including the mix of facilities) and
the preferred site location.

2.

The development of a full business case including detailed viability modelling,
procurement options, a user specification, outline planning permission, and funding
options, to be funded from the Swimming Pool Reserve.

3.

The delegation to the Corporate Director in consultation with the relevant Portfolio
Holder, authority to procure and appoint external advisers to develop the business case.

4.

The implementation of the consultation project as detailed.

5.

The outline project plan (Appendix 2).

28 November 2012
Scrutiny
The Committee received a presentation from Robbie Hazlehurst, Project Manager. The
presentation explained the process to date, the consultation results, details of future and ongoing consultations and information on the outline planning application.
It was intended that the financial arrangements for the scheme would be considered by
Performance and Budget Scrutiny Committee on 29th January, with Cabinet considering
feasibility, funding and management options on 12th February. The decision on how to
proceed would be taken by the Council on 19th February 2013.
12 March 2013
Cabinet
1.

That the Cabinet recommends that Council:i.

Agree the site at Perdiswell for the new Swimming Pool Complex.

ii.

Agree Option 1 as its preferred option with Option 2 being the minimum
specification for the new Swimming Pool Complex.

iii.

Agree the indicative Business Plan and the significant assumptions contained within
it particularly that the model excludes in-house operations.

Page 69

2.

iv.

Agree that the operation of the new facility will be via an external operator based
on a non-business lease with a peppercorn rent which includes the option to tax.

v.

Agree the Capital allocation for construction and fees of £10.5 million

vi.

Agree to progress to tender and evaluation stage for the construction and allocate
a budget of £300,000 for the tender process.

That Cabinet ask officers to investigate and secure further value for the project through
sponsorship, partnership, grants and other potential site uses.

26 March 2013
Council
RESOLVED: That the Council:1.

agree the site at Perdiswell for the new Swimming Pool Complex;

2.

agree Option 1 as its preferred option with Option 2 being the minimum specification for
the new Swimming Pool Complex;

3.

agree the indicative Business Plan and the significant assumptions contained with in it
particularly that the model excludes in-house operations;

4.

agree that the operation of the new facility will be via an external operator based on a
non-business lease with a peppercorn rent which includes the option to tax;

5.

agree the Capital allocation for construction and fees of £10.5 million; and

6.

agree to progress to tender and evaluation stage for the construction and allocate a
budget of £300,000 for the tender process.

11 June 2013
Cabinet
That the Cabinet:
1.

agree the new swimming pool complex be procured as a ‘Develop and Construct’
Contract and that prior to seeking tenders the design is taken to RIBA Stage D;

2.

agree the Restricted OJEU Procurement route is utilised to procure the contractor; and

3.

note the Sansome Walk site will be marketed to coincide with the tendering of the new
swimming pool to ensure a more precise value of the capital receipt is known at the
time of the contract evaluation.

Page 70

15 April 2014
Cabinet
That the Cabinet:1.

authorise officers to progress a detailed cost estimate and prepare a business case for
the ‘extend and refurbish’ option based on a six-lane pool; and

2.

note that the original proposal (new build) is not deliverable within the budget
provided; that changes to the operation of the business model, alongside government
funding cuts fundamentally question the affordability of this level of borrowing.

29 July 2014
Cabinet
That the scope of the investigations into the ‘extend and refurbish’ option at Perdiswell is
broadened, to include an options appraisal of additional and enhanced facilities including
increased water space and improved sports hall facilities, for consideration in a report to
Cabinet in September.
15 October 2014
Cabinet
That Cabinet note the progress on grant funding, national governing body investment, partner
contributions, planning obligations, enabling development and sponsorship and ask officers to
continue to work up such elements as might secure additional value for the project.
13 December 2016
Cabinet
1.

To approve the demolition of Sansome Walk Swimming Pool and Leisure Centre;

2.

To delegate to the S.151 Officer in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Performance and Resources authority to approve financing for the demolition works, to
include site security, ground condition surveys and applications for all relevant planning
and environmental consents; and

3.

To ask officers to prepare an options appraisal for the development of the site,
particularly housing, for which the site is allocated in the South Worcestershire
Development Plan (SWDP), and to report back their findings to a subsequent meeting of
the Cabinet.

Page 71

4 January 2017
Scrutiny
That the Committee make the following comments to Cabinet:
1.

The Committee accept recommendations 1.1 and 1.2 of the Cabinet report.

2.

The Committee recommend that the reference to housing in recommendation 1.3 be
withdrawn. This recommendation should therefore read: “To ask officers to prepare an
options appraisal for the development of the site and to report back their findings to a
subsequent meeting of the Cabinet.”

17 January 2017
Cabinet
1.

approve the demolition of Sansome Walk Swimming Pool and Leisure Centre;

2.

delegate to the S.151 Officer in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Performance
and Resources authority to approve financing for the demolition works, to include site
security, ground condition surveys and applications for all relevant planning and
environmental consents; and

3.

ask officers to prepare an options appraisal for the development of the site, particularly
housing, for which the site is allocated in the South Worcestershire Development Plan
(SWDP), and to report back their findings to a subsequent meeting of the Cabinet.

24 July 2017
Policy and Resources Committee
[Exempt resolutions relating to options appraisal for future use of the site]
7 November 2017
Policy and Resources Committee
[Exempt resolutions relating to potential disposal to Sanctuary Housing and the YMCA.]

Page 72

20 March 2018
Policy and Resources Committee
That the Committee:
1.

approve the disposal of the former Sansome Walk Swimming Pool site to Sanctuary
Housing and the YMCA, along the lines proposed for residential development and the
provision of YMCA services on site;

2.

delegate authority to the Corporate Director – Finance and Resources in consultation
with the Chair and the Vice-Chairs of the Policy and Resources Committee to finalise the
commercial terms and enter into all necessary legal agreements for the disposal of the
site; and

3.

request that meaningful consultation by Sanctuary Housing and the YMCA with local
residents is undertaken prior to a formal application being submitted.

24 May 2018
Planning Committee
That the Committee grant prior approval consent for the demolition of the swimming pool
building at Sansome Walk.
17 July 2018
Council
That the Council approve the addition of £1.7m to the Capital Programme in respect of the
demolition of swimming pool and leisure centre at Sansome Walk.

Page 73

APPENDIX 2
Implications of demolition and remediation - extracts of contemporaneous advice
Report to Cabinet 12 March 2013
“A report was prepared by Property Services in 2009 for a Working Party looking at the future
of the pool which indicated that the cost of a refurbishment to extend the useful life of the
pool by 20 years was £6.5 million. However, that figure did not include funding for
improvements needed to achieve the latest Building Regulation approvals or to meet current
customer quality expectations and standards. In the light of this and taking account of
inflation the cost of refurbishment is now estimated to be in the region of £7 - £7.5 million.”
Draft planning brief for potential site marketing, prepared by WCC officers dated 28
May 2014 (unpublished)
“Due to the nature of the existing uses, there are potential contamination issues particularly
with asbestos for which a pre-demolition survey would be required to be submitted to the
HSE. A desk study and site walkover, followed by potential site investigation is advised.
Issues of potential land contamination and remediation should be discussed as part of preapplication discussions.”
Draft report of Valuation Team Leader to Cabinet dated February 2015/October
2015 (unpublished)
“Site constraints and abnormal development costs in this case are likely to have a significant
impact on land value and could also affect the developers ability to deliver the required 40%
affordable housing. These include the following:





Linear nature of the site and proximity of adjoining housing
Demolition cost of existing swimming pool buildings
Risk of chemical contamination
Abnormal foundation costs in relation to the former pool areas….

…Disposal
•
•
•
•
•
•

Site is allocated for housing in SWDP
Impact of abnormal costs on land value
Current valuation = £650,000
Value may be maximised by sale for residential care home
Release of a capital receipt will help to reduce borrowing costs for new pool and impact
on revenue budgets.
No capital expenditure required”

Page 74

Report to Cabinet December 2016
“Further work is required by officers to obtain the relevant environmental and planning
consents to demolish the buildings on the site. There will need to be ground investigation
works carried out to determine the extent of any land contamination. Asbestos investigations
and removal works may be required as part of the demolition process…..
As noted above, the site presents a significant health and safety risk and therefore it is not
considered viable to simply erect a hoarding around the site and allow the building to remain
in situ until such time that the site is developed.
5.2 A straight disposal of the site at this stage was rejected as the Council will wish to
maximise the amenity value of the site including the level of affordable housing.
The financing of the demolition and short term security and management of the site will be
made through the use of reserves or through prudential short-term borrowing. Initial
appraisal work indicates that any sum spent on demolition and security is likely to be
recovered from a capital receipt for the sale of the site and/or from a future revenue income
stream. There is an assumption in the City’s financial plan that £500k from this site would be
generated for future capital programmes.”
Bradley Environmental Demolition Survey 17 August 2017
“Please note that, although a thorough and methodical survey strategy was adopted, it is
possible that further ACMs may be present, and are unreported in this survey. HSG264
Asbestos: the survey guide states that "It is now recognised that even with 'complete' access
demolition surveys, all ACMs may not be identified and this only becomes apparent during
demolition itself….
…The purpose of the survey was to locate, as far as reasonably practicable, the presence and
extent of all suspect ACMs prior to demolition. This survey was conducted for the specific
project(s) stated above. Additional or alternative tasks over and above that mentioned will
require a supplementary investigation to identify further ACMs that could potentially be
disturbed by the task(s) at hand.
… Please note that the extents cited within this report are an approximation only and should
not be used for the purposes of quoting asbestos removal works.”
Report to Policy and Resources Committee 20 March 2018
“The Council has been offered grant of £750,000 from the OPE land release fund. This grant
will be used as a contribution to the demolition costs on the site.
The detail of the financial offer from Sanctuary Housing and the YMCA is confidential.
The offer and the valuation advice that the Council has received are set out in the confidential
appendix to this report.

Page 75

The current void costs for the site for security and day-to-day maintenance are circa £100,000
per annum.”
SOCOTEC Demolition Survey 30 October 2018
“The purpose of this survey was to determine two aspects: 1) to validate existing data with
extents, which was previously gather by a third party surveying company, 2) ensure that all
elements were surveyed and any gaps in data filled in.
This survey report covers additional areas to those identified in Bradley Environment survey
report ref J066875 V2 issued on 14/08/2017. No attempt was made to take additional
samples from areas already identified previously.
All areas were accessed as far as reasonably practicable given that the building is still intact,
and although more ACM’s were found and intrusive inspection carried out, full access beneath
all elements is impossible without demolishing the building.”
Gleeds proposal dated 12 February 2019
“Council requires specialist advice in the following areas:







Critique of work to date
Review of asbestos surveys and specifications
Review of HazMat survey
Cost/benefit analysis of leaving below ground structures in place in relation to land use
options
Recommendations for remediation of site according to each end use option (see below)
Commentary on demolition and asbestos removal pricing/provision of new estimates
Option Appraisal and feasibility of possible end uses to include financial assessment
capturing capital receipt and revenue earning analysis along site costs assessments and
delivery analysis..”

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 77

Agenda Item 9

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 20th March 2019
Report of: Deputy Director - Governance and Monitoring Officer

Subject:
1.

LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND ACTION PLAN

Recommendation
That the Committee:

1.1

notes the update on progress to review the Local Code of Corporate
Governance; and

1.2

endorses the proposals to introduce a Corporate Governance Action Plan with
a proposed Plan for year 2019/2020 to be brought to the next meeting of the
Committee for approval.

2.

Background

2.1

In common with most local authorities, the Council has adopted a Local Code of
Corporate Governance which follows CIPFA best practice and guidance and is essentially
based on the Nolan principles. The purpose of the Code is to give direction and clarity
for the Council and all of its customers and stakeholders as to how corporate
governance is put into practical effect. The Council first adopted a Code in 2013 and it
has been subsequently reviewed by the Audit and Governance Committee on several
occasions.

2.2

The Code is based on a previous iteration of CIPFA guidance (2007). A comprehensive
new guidance document called “Delivering Good Governance” was issued by CIPFA in
2017. Drawing on the Nolan principles and refreshing various aspects of the previous
guidance, CIPFA adopted 7 new Corporate Governance Principles as follows:
1)

behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and
respecting the rule of law;

2)

ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;

3)

defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental
benefits;

4)

determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the
intended outcomes;

Page 78

5)

developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it;

6)

managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong
public financial management; and

7)

implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver
effective accountability.

2.3

When the Council’s last Annual Governance Statement was presented to the Audit and
Governance Committee on 26 July 2018, it was noted that a review of the Code was
due in order to bring it in line with the new CIPFA guidance and also to reflect the
transition to the committee model of governance.

2.4

The CIPFA guidance also notes the best practice of those local authorities who convert
the periodic reviews of their Local Codes into a series of actions where areas of specific
improvement have been identified. A Corporate Governance Action Plan is a
mechanism by which the Council can capture, target and progress specific areas for
improvement in its general corporate governance compliance against the 7 principles.
A template is attached at Appendix 1.

2.5

The Action Plan would be approved by the Audit and Governance Committee as a rolling
12 month programme of planning activities and improvements, with performance
reported back at each Committee meeting. The officer group responsible for its day to
day oversight would be the Corporate Governance Board which reports into Corporate
Leadership Team, with the overall lead officer being the Deputy Director Governance
and Monitoring Officer.

2.6

The actions are intended to be specific and measurable; they may not always involve a
root and branch review of whole area of Council business process or general policy.
Similarly, it is important that the Action Plan does not cut across the work of the
Council’s internal and external audit functions; it should be complementary and help to
deliver specific improvements identified in audits. Examples of areas of activity,
improvement or further enquiry which are typically found on a Corporate Governance
Action Plan include:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

Specific employee related policies and procedures or training needs
Specific Member related policies and procedures or training needs
Process for writing and authorising decision reports
Procurement strategy
Project management processes
Information governance policies and processes
Risk management awareness
Specific statutory compliance, e.g. health and safety, GDPR, public sector
equality duty, safeguarding, Prevent.

Page 79

3.

Preferred Option

3.1

It is proposed to adopt a revised Code based on the revised CIPFA principles, as well as
an Action Plan derived from a review of the Code on an annual basis. The accessibility
of the documents will be reviewed as well as their content to ensure that they are likely
to earn a reputation within the Council as useful reference materials. For example, a
tabular, easy-read format and use of hyperlinks to the Council’s key policies and
processes would make the document more dynamic.

3.2

It is proposed that the Corporate Governance Board produces the revised Code and a
first year Action Plan for the Committee to consider at its next meeting in July.

4.

Alternative Options considered

4.1

The existing Code is legally compliant and has served the Council since 2013. It could
therefore remain in effect. However this is not the recommended option because while
the substance of the Code is still relevant, it does not align with the revised CIPFA
Corporate Governance principles. Additionally it is considered that the presentation of
the document could be improved to encourage better navigation.

5.

Implications

5.1

Financial and Budgetary Implications
None arising from this report.

5.2

Legal and Governance Implications
Identified earlier in this report.

5.3

Risk Implications
None arising from this report.

5.4

Corporate/Policy Implications
The revised Code will form part of the Council’s policy framework. It is proposed that
an appendix to the Code will draw together all of the key corporate governance policies
into one reference point.

5.5

Equality Implications
None arising from this report.

5.6

Human Resources Implications
None arising from this report.

Page 80

5.7

Health and Safety Implications
None arising from this report.

5.8

Social, Environmental and Economic Implications
None arising from this report.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Telephone:
Email:
Background Papers:

All
Sian Stroud
01905 722019
sian.stroud@worcester.gov.uk
None

APPENDIX 1 - TEMPLATE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ACTION PLAN
Corporate Governance Action Plan Year [

]

The review of the Council's Local Code of Corporate Governance identified the following issues where improvement work is ongoing.
These improvement actions will be monitored by the Corporate Governance Board and reported to the Audit and Governance
Committee.

Area of consideration

Action

Owner

Deadline

Priority

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and respecting the rule of law

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

Developing the Council's capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Page 81

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability

Page 82

